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Dear Tomas 
 
RE: WHISTLEBLOWER – TRINITY HOUSING ASSOCIATION’S 
PURCHASE OF CROSSGAR SITE 
 
We have been in communication for some time now regarding the allegations 
relating to the Trinity Chief Executive and the purchase of the Crossgar site.  
Indeed, as I set out below this has been a difficult case, the complexities of which 
we have kept you advised. 
 
In your letter to me dated 13th October 2013 you had raised a number of issues on 
which you wanted us to seek clarification from the Chief Executive.   
 
You are aware that when my officials spoke to him in November 2013 he had his 
legal advisor in attendance and his position was that given the serious nature of 
what he described as unfounded allegations being made about him over a number 
of years, he was not prepared to answer any further questions until he was fully 
aware of what information was already in circulation about him.  He advised my 
staff that he would be seeking all information/correspondence about him in order 
that he might determine what further courses of action might be appropriate.  
Following the release of the relevant documentation under FOI, we received further 
FOI requests from other parties which also necessitated seeking the views of the 
Departmental Solicitors Office..  Unfortunately this process took considerable time 
and it was only on the 8th October 2014 that we felt in a position to write again to 
the Chief Executive to put the queries you raised, I understand you had sight of 
this correspondence.  We received the reply from the Chief Executive’s solicitor on 
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28th October 2014, which I have attached separately.  It was the contents of that 
reply which we discussed on 25th November 2014. 
 
The attached document contains the following information: 
 
Appendix A – Copy of the letter to the Chief Executive of the 8th October. 
 
Appendix B – Copy of the response from Trinity’s solicitor plus attachments 
 
Appendix C – Timeline for the Crossgar scheme provided by trinity’s solicitor. 
 
Appendix D – Copy of the letter from the Trinity Chair. 
 
We would summarise the outcome of the Chief Executive’s response, and our 
understanding of them, as follows:-  
 
Question 1 
 
Regarding the reason for Trinity purchasing the site when it was a Design and 
Build scheme,  there is clear evidence in the documentation provided by the 
Association that an e-mail from the Department to Trinity dated 16 March 2007 
(see Appendix C, Item 6) asked Trinity if they could submit the Crossgar scheme 
as an ALP.  We believe this to be significant as it undermines any argument that 
might be made that there might have been a plan to purchase the Crossgar site as 
a means of funding the developer’s purchase of the brother’s house in 
Newtownards. It was the NIHE that had set out the issue of need in Crossgar while 
it was the Department which initiated the ALP process that led ultimately to funds 
being transferred to Trinity by NIHE.   
 
Question 2 
 
In relation to the sale of the Chief Executive’s  brother’s house, the response from 
the Solicitor indicates that she believes that Trinity Housing Association has 
“Provided a full and frank disclosure of all matters within its knowledge relating to 
this site” and that they “are not therefore in a position to add anything further to 
what has been previously disclosed”. 
 
Question 3 
 
In relation to the issue of failing to correctly declare a potential conflict of interest, 
the Association has provided evidence to support the statement from the Chief 
Executive that as soon as he became aware that his brother’s house had been 
bought by a Developer with whom the Association was entering into a contract with 
on a scheme at Beverley Heights, Newtownards, he notified his Chair.  A copy of a 
letter from the Chair of Trinity HA at that time is attached at Appendix D. 
 
Like the C&AG I have been frustrated by the time that has been taken to have 
answers provided to these specific questions. However I believe our investigations 
to date have clarified: 



(a) that the assessment and processing of the Crossgar ALP was fully in 
accordance with the procedures in place at that time, both as regards 
valuation and development potential, further the genesis was identified 
social housing need by NIHE and an request to consider ALP by the 
Department; and 
 

(b) there is no evidence to refute the Chief Executive claim that he was 
unaware of the purchase of his brothers house and that when that was 
brought to his attention he alerted the Chair and Board, which has again 
been confirmed in writing.  
 

I believe that these investigations have now been taken as far as they can. I would 
welcome the NIAO’s views on this matter. 
 
I am happy to discuss further.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
WILL HAIRE 
 




















































































